
COUNCIL AGENDA
CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI
TUESDAY, MARCH 10, 2020

6:30 P.M. - COUNCIL CHAMBERS

1. Call to Order

2. Invocation

3. Pledge of Allegiance to Flag

4. Calling of the Roll

5. Reading and Consideration of Minutes of Previous Meeting

6. Presentations/Proclamations

7. Public Comments
(Each person addressing the Council shall state their name and address or the organization or firm represented and is limited to no more than five
(5) minutes. The time may be extended by the chair if deemed necessary. Once a person has had their say on a particular issue they are not permitted
to once again speak on the issue unless called to answer any further questions by the Council or Chair)

8. Reports of Standing Committees

9. Reports from Special Committees and Board Liaisons

10. Report of the Mayor

11. Reports/Remarks of Councilmembers
(Each Councilmember is limited to no more than two (2) minutes. The time may be extended by the Chair if deemed necessary. Once a

Councilmember has had their say on a particular issue they are not permitted to once again speak on the Issue unless permitted by the Chair)

12. Administrative Reports

13. Report of Claims Presented Against the City

14. Public Hearings

15. Old Business

16. New Business

1. C.B. 20-07 - An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract between the City of
Carthage, Missouri and CDL Electric of Pittsburg, Kansas for lighting improvements and
upgrades at City Hall. (Public Works)

2. C.B. 20-08 - An Ordinance adopting and amending APPENDIX H (Signs) of the International
Building Code/2006. (Public Works)

3. C.B. 20-09 - An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract between the City of
Carthage, Missouri and G&G Construction Co. Inc., of Carthage, Missouri for the River Street
Widening and Storm water improvements project in an amount not to exceed $241,016.14.
(Public Works)

4. C.B. 20-10 - An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract between the City of
Carthage, Missouri and Sprouls Construction, Inc., of Lamar, Missouri for Storm water
Improvement projects in an amount not to exceed $207,240.00. (Public Works)

5. C.B. 20-11 - An Ordinance vacating a portion of an alley running North (from approximately
286 feet to 460 feet) off Centennial Street between Grand Avenue and Clinton Street, between
1429 S Clinton and 1500 Grand Avenue in Carthage Misceilaneous Addition, in the City of
Carthage, Missouri. (Public Works)



17. Mayor's Appointments

18. Resolutions

1. Resolution 1896 - A Resolution providing for the formal acceptance of a donation by the
City Council of the City of Carthage. Missouri pursuant to City Policy. (Public Safety)

19. Closing Comments

20. Executive Session

21 .Adjournment

PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE CALL 417-237-7000 (VOICE) OR 1-
800-735-2466 (TDD VIA RELAY MISSOURI) AT LEAST 24 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI

February 25, 2020

The Carthage City Council met in regular session on the above date at 6:30 P.M. In the
City Haii Council Chambers with Mayor Dan Rife presiding. Fire Chief Roger Williams
gave the invocation and Police Chief Greg Dagnan led the flag salute.

The following Council Members answered roll call: David Armstrong, Mike Daugherty,
Cerl Otero, Alan Snow, Darren Collier, Kirby Newport, Ed Barlow, Juan Topete, James
Harrison, and Ray West. City Administrator Tom Short and City Attorney Nate Daily
were present.

The following Department Heads were present: Police Chief Greg Dagnan. Fire Chief
Roger Williams, Public Works Director Zeb Carney, Parks & Recreation Director Mark
Peterson and City Clerk Traci Cox.

Mr. Daugherty made a motion, seconded by Mr. Collier, to approve the minutes of the
February 11, 2020 Council Meeting. Motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Snow reported the Budget, Ways and Means Committee is between meetings with
the next meeting scheduled for March 9.

Ms. Otero reported the Committee on insurance/Audit and Claims met on this date in
the Council Chambers and approved the claims.

Mr. Harrison reported the Public Safety Committee met on February 24. The CWEP
Tower to Tower 5K and Fun Run will be held on Saturday, May 9*^ beginning at 8:00
a.m. Mr. Harrison made a motion, seconded by Mr. Armstrong, to approve the request
by CWEP for the help of the Carthage PD with street crossings at Main Street and
Fairvlew and also River Street and Fairvlew. Motion carried.

Mr. Topete reported the Public Services Committee met on February 18. Bids for the
fireworks display were reviewed and will be presented In C.B. 20-06. Mr. Topete made a
motion, seconded by Mr. Daugherty, to approve road closures at Kellogg Lake for Kids
Fishing Day to be held June 13 from 8:00 a.m. to noon. Motion carried. Contracts with
different organizations for use of parks and facilities of the City of Carthage were
discussed. Many are outdated and need to be addressed to ensure clarity and to
address cost recovery. New contracts will be prepared that address these issues.
Proposals for the Parks & Recreation Master Plan ranged from $89,000 to $133,000. A
selection committee comprised of the Mayor, Public Services Committee Chair and Vice
Chair, Juan Topete and James Harrison, City Administrator Tom Short and Parks &
Recreation Director Mark Peterson will review the proposals with interviews beginning
on March 1.

Mr. Daugherty reported the Public Works Committee is between meetings with the next
meeting scheduled for March 3.



Special Committee and Board Liaison reports were given by Mr. Topete for the
Carthage Kellogg Lake Board and Carthage Tree Board, Mr. Collier for the Carthage
Water and Electric, Ms. Otero for the Carthage Humane Society, Harry S Truman
Coordinating Council, and Jasper County Commissioners, Mr. Armstrong for the
Powers Museum Board, and Mr. Barlow for the Planning, Zoning and Historic
Preservation.

During Reports of Council Members, Mr. Snow and Mr. West thanked all for their help
and support during their absence.

Fire Chief Roger Williams reported on a recent video showing how quickly a house fire
had spread, noting the importance of having an escape plan in place and smoke
detectors.

Public Works Director Zeb Carney reported on meetings with Schreiber representatives
regarding site plans, a job opening at the recycling center, meetings regarding the
Jasper County Sheriff expansion project, and the opening of Oriental Express.

Parks & Recreation Director Mark Peterson reported on the Parks Master Plan interview
process.

City Administrator Tom Short reported on the following: a lot split and an agreement
with Schrieber's will appear on the next council agenda, progress on the McGrath
compensation study, 2021 FY budget progress, and the City Administrator's report
included in the packet.

The Committee on Claims filed a report in the amount of $422,979.65 against the
following funds: General Revenue $45,677.13, Public Health $141,073.06, Public Safety
$2,216.85, Parks/Stormwater $22,693.50, Fire Protection $7,467.99, Golf $1,992.94,
Capital Improvements $18,323.50, Public Facilities $23,583.50, and Payroll
$159,951.18. Ms. Otero made a motion, seconded by Mr. Daugherty, to accept the
report and allow the claims. Motion carried.

Under Old Business, Mr. Daugherty made a motion, seconded by Ms. Otero to
reconsider C.B. 19-43. Motion carried. C.B. 19-43 - An Ordinance authorizing the
Mayor to execute an Agreement between the City of Carthage, Missouri and Butterball
LLC., for installation of a recommended 5 foot wide crosswalk at 411 N Main St.,
Carthage, Missouri was discussed due to changes made by Butterball to the
agreement. Mr. Harrison made a motion, seconded by Mr. Daugherty, to send the C.B.
and agreement back to committee for additional review. Motion carried.

C.B. 20-02 - An Ordinance to authorize the Mayor to apply for federal financial
assistance on behalf of the City of Carthage and to execute any contract(s) resulting
from such application for any grants between the City of Carthage and the Missouri
Highways and Transportation Commission providing for capital, operating, and/or



marketing assistance, comprised of federal funds to be expended for Commission-
approved transit projects was placed on second reading followed by a roll call vote of 10
yeas and 0 nays. Ayes: Armstrong, Barlow, Collier, Daugherty, Harrison, Newport,
Otero, Snow, Topete and West. The council bill was approved and numbered
Ordinance 20-03.

C.B. 20-03 - An Ordinance extending the current agreement with Blevlns Asphalt
Construction Co., Inc. for the Annual Asphalt Paving Contract (@ $58.55 per ton of
asphalt to Include tack oil) to Include a new term from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021
was placed on second reading followed by a roll call vote of 10 yeas and 0 nays. Ayes:
Armstrong, Barlow, Collier, Daugherty, Harrison, Newport, Otero, Snow, Topete and
West. The council bill was approved and numbered Ordinance 20-04.

C.B. 20-04 - An Ordinance to amend Section 23 of the Code of the City of Carthage by
adding section 23-431, Municipal Parking Lot Regulations was placed on second
reading followed by a roll call vote of 4 yeas and 6 nays. Ayes: Barlow, Harrison, Otero,
Topete. Nays: Armstrong, Collier, Daugherty, Newport, Snow and West. The Council
Bill failed.

C.B. 20-05 - An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute an Agreement between
Morris Strom for professional labor that will manage the Nexedge Radio System as It
affects the operation of those city departments who function within the city limits of the
City of Carthage and the Carthage Fire Department whose operational area includes
the city and the fire district was placed on second reading followed by a roll call vote of
10 yeas and 0 nays. Ayes: Armstrong, Barlow, Collier, Daugherty, Harrison, Newport,
Otero, Snow, Topete and West. The council bill was approved and numbered
Ordinance 20-05.

Under New Business, C.B. 20-06 - An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a
contract with Riverside Fireworks LLC for fireworks display for the July 4, 2020, July 4,
2021 and July 4, 2022 celebration in the amount not to exceed $44,850.00 was placed
on first reading with no action taken.

During closing remarks, Mr. Daugherty extended his condolences to the Snow and Rife
families, Mr. Newport expressed his desire to conduct a Mock Council Meeting In
conjunction with Student Council Day, and Mr. Barlow thanked first responders for what
they do.

Mr. West made a motion, seconded by Mr. Collier, to adjourn the regular session of the
Council Meeting. Motion carried and meeting adjourned at 7:11 PM.

Dan Rife, Mayor



Trad Cox, City Clerk



PRE SENT A HONS/

PROCLAMA HONS



PUBLIC

HEARINGS



OLD

B USINESS



NEW

B USINESS



COUNCIL BILL NO. 20-07 ORDINANCE NO.

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract between the City of Carthage, Missouri
and CDL Electric of Pittsburg, Kansas for lighting improvements and upgrades at City Hall.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, JASPER

COUNTY, MISSOURI as follows:

SECTION I: The Mayor of the City of Carthage is hereby authorized to execute a Contract
between the City of Carthage, Missouri and CDL Electric of Pittsburg, Kansas for lighting
improvements and upgrades at City Hall, which Contract is attached hereto and incorporated

herein as if set out in full.

SECTION II; This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and
approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF March 2020.

Dan Rife, Mayor

ATTEST:

Trad Cox, City Clerk

Sponsored by: Public Works Committee



ALTERNATIVE ENERGIES DIVISION
■-Ulboiution.cofn

one company many solutions
i^/26/202(j

OWNER INFORMATION CONTRACTOR INFORMATION
NAME Zeb Camey COMPANY CDL Electric Co., Inc.

ADDRESS 836 Grant Street ADDRESS 1308 N Walnut

CITY. STATE, aP Carthage, MO, 64836 CITY, STATE, aP Pittsburg, KS 66762

PHONE 417-237-7003 PHONE 620-231-6420 FAX 620-231-6421

EMAIL z.carney@carthagefno.gov EMAIL info@cdl-electric,com

PROJECT NAME Carthage City Hall LED Retrofit COMPLETION DATE May 31,2020

SCOPE OF WORK
For an itemized breakdown of material, labor, and scope of work, please see attached documents.

NOT INCLUDED
Drywall patching and repair, ceiling tile repair or placement, scaffoldings construction or placement, night and weekend hours,
carpet cleaning, painting or touch-up. Also not included, reworking of electrical circuits if required. If more fixture are needed
to complete subject project, they will be added as an extra to overall project.

ACKNOWLEDGE ADDENDA

COMPANY PROPOSAL

Retrofit of light fixtures in Carthage City Hall as specified in the request for proposal provided by the City of Carthage. $ 15,308.00

TOTAL $ 15,308.00
Payment Due Upon Completion of Project TAX INCLUDED Oyes ©no

Thank you for this opportunity.
Sincerely,

Zack Osbom
COL Becfric Co.. Inc
Manager Memative Energy Solutions
620-363-0824
zaci<.osbom@cdi-electric.com

LEGAL NOTICE: All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All worlr to be compleled in a worlrmanlike manner according to standard practices. Any alteration or deviation from above
specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the esL'mate, All agreements are contingent upon strikes,
accidents, or delays beyond our control. Owner is to carry fire, tornado, and other necessary insurance. Our workers are fully covered by Workman's Compensation Insurance. Acceptance of
Proposal - the above prices spedficalions and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are authorized to da the work as specified.

Date of Acceptance:. Authorized Signature:.

Note: this proposal may be withdrawn if not accepted within 30 days.



COUNCIL BILL NO. 20-08 ORDINANCE NO.

An ordinance adopting and amending APPENDIX H (Signs) of the International Building
Code/2006.

Section I: The publication known as the International Building Code/2006 Appendix H,
as published and by the International Code Council, Inc. and amended is hereby adopted for the
control, installation, and placement of signs herein provided; and each and all of the regulations,
provisions, penalties, conditions, amendments, and terms of said Appendix H are hereby referred
to, adopted, and made part hereof as fully set out in ordinance, with additions, insertions, deletions,
and changes, prescribed in Section 111 of this ordinance.

Section II: That the International Building Code/2000 Appendix Hand all other ordinances
or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

Section III:

Section HI01.2 DELETE: 1. Painted nonilluminated signs.

Section HI04 DELETE: Identification (complete section)

Section HI07.1.3 DELETE: Area Limitations (complete Section)

Section HI 10.4 DELETE: Height of open signs (complete section)

Section HI 10.5 DELETE: Height of closed signs (complete section)

Section HI 13 DELETE: Marquee signs (complete section)

Section HI06.1 DELETE: ICC and INSERT: NEC

Section H106.2 DELETE: ICC and INSERT: NEC

Section H107.1.2 DELETE: 200 square feet INSERT: 120 square feet

Section H109.1 DELETE: greater than 100 feet (30,480 mm) INSERT: 45 feet

Section HI 10.3 DELETE: solid INSERT: Roof

Section HI 10.3 DELETE: having a solid surface

Section H109 INSERT: HI09.4 Ground signs shall be permitted only when they
advertise products or services sold on the premises on which said sign is located; when
they advertise products or services sold by the owner of the ground sign; or when they
display directions or advertise information about public places; historic homes; historic
sites; historic districts; historic museums; municipal buildings; and hospitals, etc.



HI 09.5 Ground signs with two (2) faces or less shall not have more than 120 square
feet per face, except those located along four lane divided, limited access highways.
Ground signs located along said highways shall not have more than 200 square feet per
face.

H109.6 Ground signs with multiple faces constructed on either side or on the same
side of uprights or supports shall not have more than 120 square feet per side.

HI09.7 Ground signs having three (3) or four (4) faces attached to the same upright
or supports at the same elevation shall not have more than 50 square feet per face. Messages
board areas which are 60 square feet or less that are located on the same uprights or
supports of any ground sign, shall not be considered to be part of the sign face. Message
board areas of more than 60 square feet located on the same uprights or supports shall not
be allowed.

H109.8 No more than one (1) ground sign shall be allowed for commercial or non
commercial premises on which said signs are located, unless said premises lie adjacent to
more than one city street, county highway, state highway, or federal highway. No more
than one (1) additional ground sign shall be allowed in such cases.

SECTION IV: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage

and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF , 2020.

Dan Rife, Mayor

ATTEST:

Tract Cox, City Clerk

Sponsored by: Public Works Committee



APPENDIX H

SIGNS

Thu pwri^ions coiiuuncel in l/ii.s appendix arc not niundctlory unk'.ss \pcciJ\caU\ rcjciviiccd in the adopting ordinaiici

SECTION H101

GENERAL

HlOi.l General. A >ien ̂ llall luH he erected in a manner tiiiit

uould e(^n!U^e or ohslruei the \ieu of or interfere with c-\il

siyti.N required by Cliaplei 10 or with v)ltieial traffic •^ign^. >ig-
n.iK or devico. Sign> and >ign support siaietuies together with
their supports, braces, guys and iuicliors, shall he kept in repair
and in proper state of preservation. Ttie display surfaces (T
signs shall be kept neatis painted oi ported at nil times.

H10I.2 Signs e.\empi from permits. The following signs are
exempt from the requirements to obtain a permit before
erection;

1. T-tHi»pwtwyf4gHsanmHtneingiht}««leor-r*fHi4d'propt*fty.

2. Signsereciedbytranspurtaiioti authorities,

y. Projeeiingsigns noie.xceeding2 5squarefceHll.2.imni >

4. Tlie changing i>f mo\'eable parts cif an approcetl sign that
is designed for such changes, or the repainting or
repositioning of display matter shall not be deemed an
alter-action

SECTION H102

DEFINITIONS

H102.1 General. Unless otherwise cxjiressly stated, the
following words and terms sh.ill, foi the putposcs ot this
appendix, have the meanings shown herein. Referto Chapter2
ol the International Building Code for general definitions.

COMBI.N.V'ITON SIGN. .A sign ineoiporaiing any
eombination of the fcatui csof pole, projecting and roofsigns,

DISPLAY SIGN. The area tn.ide available by the sign
structure for the purpose of displaving the adverii.sing
tncss.ige

KLECTRIC SIGN. A sign cuiilaitiing eieetrieal wiring, but
not including signs illuminated by an exterior ligiii source.

GROUND SIGN. A billbo.irdoisimilart>pe of sign which is
•upponed In one oi more uprights, poles or brakes in or upon
tlie ground other than a combination sign or poR- sign, as
defined by this code.

POLE SIG.N. .A sign wht>ll\ supported by a sign simeiure in
the ground.

PORTABLE DISPLAY SURF.ACE. A dispiav surface
tuipniiK fixed to a siandiirdi/ed adveilising structure whieh is
rcgularlv moved from sii-ucture to structure at periodic
intervals

2006 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE

PROJECTING SIGN. A .sign oilier than a wall sign, which
projects from and is supported by a wall of a building or
structure,

ROOF SIGN. .A signcrcetcii u|nm or above a rin>f or parapet
of a building or siruetui e.

SIGN. Any letter, figure, dianieter. mark, plane, jioinl,
marquee sign, de.sign, postei-. pielorial, picture, stroke, stripe,
line, trademark. re.iding matter or illumin.ited service, which
shall be constructed, placed, attached- painted, erected,
fastened or manufuetured in any manner whatsoever, so that
the same shall he used for the aitraetion of the public to any
place, subject, person, firm. eor|ioralion. public performance,
article, macliine or merchandise, whatsoever, whieh is
displayed in anv manner outdoors, livei-y sign shall he
classified and eonfonn to the requirements of that
classification asset forth in tliis chapter

SIGN STRL'CTL'RE. Anv siruelurc which supports or is
capable of supporting :i sign as defined in this code, A sign
structure is pennilied to be a single pole and is not required to
bean integral part ol'the building.

WALL SIGN. Any sign attached to or crectcvi against the wall
ii building or struciuj e. w ith the exposed face ol the sign in a

plane parallel to the plane of saiil wall.

SECTION H103

LOCATION

H103.J Location restrictions. Signs shall not be erected,
constructed or maintained so as to obstruct anv fire escape or
anv window or door or opening u.-<ed a.s a means of egress or
so as to prevent free passage from one part o r a roof to any
other part thereof. A ̂ ign shall not be attached in anv fomi,
shape or manner to a fire escape, nor be plaeeil In such manner
as lti inierfere with any <ipcning rciiuircd for ventilation.

SECTION-H4M-

IDEJ4T4FICATION

ouiiioi' dveni--ing displav sig n
(41 rtin-tHiHed; iW-wbk- h a per-

tfiredslhi II be [iliiint-rktstl—v-bb-tlte-mimeof the per-
S4-»nr-tlnn —e!-mg«jtif«4H4+lHnHtig-*-ueli-MeM-and
shrt-ll Imve-rtffi-HtHloH - fr-tmHlwre»»mbtff»tH-iiHt-numberitwued

»Hetl«Hl4dHdeiHifiirT«i«H-H-p|» bv the
lor .said sign or oilier
building oftieialy''

5y<)



APPENDIX H

23.

SECTION H105

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

H105.1 General ri'qulrcmcnt.s. Sign-- --luill be designed and
eoiisirucicd to eititiply wiili tlic pn>\isii>n> nl'this code for u^c
ormatcrials. loads and stresses.

H105.2 Permits, drawings and specifications. Where a
pcnnit is required, a-- provided in Chapter I. construction
diieuments .shall be required. Tliese docutneiits shall show the
dimensions, material and required details of eonstrueiion.
including loads, stresses and anchors

tI1053 Wind load. Signs slsiil be designed and eonstrueted tti
withstand wind prcs.sureas provided for in Chapter I f-.

H105.4 Seismic load. Signs desigrscd to withstand uind
pressures shall be considered capable of withstanding
canhquake loails. except as provided for in Chapter 16.

H105.6 Working stresses. In outdoor advertising displav
signs, the allowable working stresses shall eonfonn to tlie
requirements of Chapter ifi. Tlie working stresses i)f wire rope
and il.s lastcnings shall not e.xceed 25 percent of the ultimate
strength of the ri)pe or fasteners.

Exception s:
1. 'Hie allowable working stresses for .steel and wood

shallbeinaeeordanee with theprov isions id" Cluipters 22 and

2. I he working strength o! chains, cables, guys or steel
rods shall not exceed one- fifth ofthe ultimate strength
i«fstiehchains, eables.guys. orstecl.

HI05.6 Attachment. Sigti.s attached to masonry, concrete or
steel shall be safely and securely fastened by means of metal
anchors, bolts or approved expan.sion screws of suflicicni size
and anchorage to safely support the loads applied

of 2 seconds or le>-- atid a Imnting extent of 5.d inches i 150
mm) or less for 10 speeimenN.

H106.2 Electrical service. Signs that require elcetrica!
ser\iec .shall eoniplv with the M-!(" fi^fLlccirical Cnch-.

SECTION H107

COMBUSTIBLE MATERIALS

H107.1 Use of combustibles. Wood, approv ed plastic or plastic
veneer panels as provided for in Chapter 26 . or other materials
of eomlnislible charaeterisiics similar to wood, used for

moldings, eappings. nailing blocks, letters and latticing, shall
comply with Section HIO'-M, and shall not be used for other
omametual features oi'sign.--. unic--s approvetl.

HI07.I.] Plastic materials. Notwiilistanding any other
provisions of this code, plastic materials w hich bum at a rale
no faster than 2.5 inches per minute i64 mm s) wlien tested
in aeeordanee with .-XSTMD 6.^5 shall be deemed approved
plastics and can be used as the display surface material and
lor the lettei s, decorations and facings on signs and outdoor
displavsiruciures.

H107.I.2 Electric sign faces. Individual pkistie facings of
eleclrie signs shall not exceed square feel (lx.6 m-) in
area.

Hl^J.3 Area limilallon. II the areti oljykKplay surface
exeecds^fKlAauare feet {I S.b m-). llm^irtfaoccupied or cov
ered by appiDved (5]a?tTc>4tgllb»^4tmiled to 200 square feel
(18.6 m-) plus 51) permil-mWs^iffcreiice between 200
.square feel (I S.b^i'rTmd Ihe tirea oTtHimlay surface. The
aiea of pl^e<m a dis[)lay surface sluill m)l nT^uj;(;ase
e.xecet^kltlO .square feet (102 nv).

HI07.I.4 Plastic appurtenances. Letieis and decorations
mounted on an approved plastic facing or display surface
can be made of approved plastics.

SECTION H106

ELECTRICAL

IlIO 6.1 Illumination. .A sign shall not he illumin.iied by other
tlum electrical means, and electrieal devices and wiring shall be
insialled in aeeordanee with the requirements ofthe Nb'C 1G4-
lilcarical Cmh'. .Any open -park oi flame shall ni)i be used
for displav purpo-e> unles.> speeifieallv approved

H106.1.1 Intcrnniiy illuminutcd sigii.s. I.xeept as
provided for in Scetioiis 4(i2.14 and 2611 wlicre intenially
illuminated .--igns have facings of wood or approved plastic,
the area of meli facing >eetion shall not fx; more than 120
square I'ecldi. lomiand the wiring for eleclrie lighting s
hall be entirelv enclosed in the sign cabinet w ilh a clearance
of not less than 2 inches (5) mmi from the facing material.
The din^en^lon;ll limitation of 120 square feet ( 1 1. 16 md s
iiall not appiv to --ign facing sections made from tlamc-
rcsistani-eoated fabric (ordinarily known a-- " llcxible sign
face plastic") that weighs Ic--s than 20 ounce-- per square
yard (678 e m". and that, when le-ted in accordance with
NFPA

701. meets the tire propagation perfomiance requirements
or both Test 1 and Test 2 or that wlieti tested in aeeordanee

w ith an approved tot method, exhibit s an average burn time

SECTION H108

ANIMATED DEVICES

H108.1 Fall-safe device, .'sign-- that cvnitain moving sections or
oniumenl.- shall have fail-safe jirovisions to prevent the seelii>n
or om.imciil from releasing and falling cir shifting its center o!
graviiv more than l.s inches i.tS I mm). 'Ilic fail-sate devices
shall be in addition to the meelumism and the meclianism's
housing which operate llic movuble section or omamem. The
fail-safe device shall be capable of supporting the full dead
weight ofthe section or ornament when thcmov ing mechanism
releases.

SECTION H109

GROUND SIGNS

II109.I Height restrictions. Hic structural frame of ground
signs shall not be erected of combustible materials to a height
of more than 35 feet (t066S mm) above the gri>und. Ground
signs constructed entirely Of noncombusiible material shall not

Be erected to a height ihair-IW-tetH 45lixt above tire
ground. Greater licighLs are penjiitted where

2005 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING 0306!:

600



APPENDIX H

approved und located so as not n> create a ha/tird or danger to
the pulMic.

HI09.2Rcquircd clearance. The bottom coping of every
ground sign shall be not less than teci (91-1 mm) iibovcthc
ground or street level, which .space can Iv filled w ith plailbnn
decorative trim tirliglu woodeneon.struction.

H109.3 W(.>odan|j||||gg|i supports. Where vvvtodanchors or
supports arc embedded in the soil, the vmhxI sh.ill be pressure
treated with an approv ed preservaiiv c.

11109,4 Gnnind siuns shall he nermitted only vvlien thev

atlventse produet-S or services st'hl tin the premises on which
.said siun is h>caicd: when lliev ailvenise naHltteis or services

sold bv the owmer of the arotuul sign: or vvlieti lliev disi^lav
directions or advertise itifonnaiion about public idaces;
historic htanes: historic sites: liisiorie districts: historic
museums: tnunieipul buildimis: and hosnital.s. etc.

n 109.5 CJrouiid simis vvilli two (2t laces or le.ss shall not liave

more than 120 square feel per face, except tlxvse located aU>iiu
four lane divided, limited access liiithwavs. (Iroutid signs

located alone said highways shall not have nu>re than 200
square feet ner face.

111(19.0 Ground siuns with multiple faee.s eonstiuetcd on
either side <ir on the same side of unrlahts or sunnons .shall

not luive more than 120 .suuarc feel ner side.

11109.7 Cirouiid siuns luivinu tliree (-M or Ibtir <4) faces

attached to the same unrialu or supports at the same elevation
shall m)t have more than 50 square feet ner face. Messages
hoard ureas which are fif) suuarc I'eel or less that are located

on the same upriulils i>r supports oi'aiiv around siuii. sliall not
he considered tt» he part of the sian face. Messaae bivard area.s
of more than (ill square feel loealal on the same tipriahts or
supports sitall not he allowed.

lllUO.g No more tlum one (1) uround siun .sliail be alUmed

I'or eommLTeial or iioii-commLTeiiii nrcmiscs cm whicli saiti

slims are located, unless said premises lie atliaeein to more
llian one citv street, county hiehwav. state liiuhwav. or federal
liiulivvav. No more llian one f I) additimial urtmiul siun shall

he allowed in such eases.

thereof. Nc^ ponion of an\ root .sign structure shall project
beyoiul an c.xtcrior w all.

Kxception: Signs on flat rovds withcvci v pail of the roof
accessible.

HI 10.2 Bearing plates. The bearing plates ofroofsigns shall
distribute the loaddircctly toorupon masonn,- walls, steel roof
ginlcis. columns or bc.ims. The building shall be designed tj
av(iid t>vcisircss ol ihcsc members.

HI 10.3 Height of Roof setid-signs. .N roof sign having a iinlid
sariihrt? shall not c.vcccd. at aiiv point, a licighl ol 24 iev'i ("315

mm) measured from tlie roof surt'acc.

imOrf-Heiflil-of open-signs.-<^pen-fiH4- sigiifMH wiiielv-the
is iuH4es^lH»t 4(1 peroetiHd4t>htlgr*»ss-af«!a

i4ntjl-tH*t-e;o^tftfdHi4KitglH-of ?5feetl22S6l>mm)on buildings of
Type -1—OF—4"-yi>e 2--et*nstfth.Mhm. Qii fnii Iditigs of-otlwr
t.HHWf-uetitH»-typt?s; ihe-heigln-shaH-ntH-e.seHjed-iO feet (-1-3

Stieli-sigiis-^4v»f}-l»e—tJ«»Fougbiy-seeHired-h+-tbe
btiiltliHg—uptw-wbich -tftey-areHnstHtk'd. erecltftf-wF-eonstFuet-
ttd-by-ifvMi. metrtl imeiiofs.- t>oUs:-stippon>. duiHei-stfaiHled
cables. steei rtHls or brac-esend the^shall i>e -mamwined in
gVHMl tHMHlition.

mdOif-HefgiH-of-eb^sed-sigtHn-A-elosed^Hd'-sigii-sltHH-nHt
be-erec(ed-u+-«-heiglu gfei»ter-tb«n-5(Meel-f-l-534<)4nni)-abeve
dhFftwlkd4Hjildi»gs-<4'4ype4-<>f-Typth5-t.'tMistnH.4i«fi-HotH«HH=e

tit

SECTION H111

WALL SIGNS

HI 11.1 Materials. Wall signs which have an area c.xeccding
4tl square led i.v72 m ) shall be constructed of metal or other
approved noncumiiustiblc material, except for nailing raiK and
as provided for in Sections Hlflb I.I and 1110''.I.

H1I1.2 Exleriorwallmountingdetails. Wall.>iignsattached
to exterior walls ol solid masonry, concrete or stone sluill be
safely and securely attached bj mea ns of mel.il anchors, bvilts
r>r e.vpansion screw sol' not less than Vs inch (9.5 innn diameter
and shall be embciidcd at least .'i inches ( 12 7 mm). Wood
blocks shall not be u.scd for anchorage, except in the ease of
wall signs attaclicd to buildings w ith walls of wood. A wall sign
shall not be supported by anchi>r.»ges secured to an unbraced
parapet wall.

HI 11.3 Extension. Wall signs shall not extend above the top
of the wall, nor luyond the uids of the wall to which the signs
are aliached unless Mich signs conform to ihc requirements for
roof signs, projeeiing signs or ground signs.

SECTION H110

ROOF SIGNS

HIIO.I General. Roi.t'sjgns shall be con.4rucici[ entirely of
metal or lUher appiovcd noncombusliblc material except as
provided for in Sections H106.1.1 and HIO" I. Provisions
shall be made for electric grounding of metallic parts Where
combusiiblc materials arc pennitted in letters or other
ornamciilal features, wiring ami tuhing shall be kept fixv and
insulated tlicrdVom. Roof signs shall be so constructed a.s (o
leave a clear space id"not less than (> feet { 1 J<29 mm) between
tile nsiflcve! and the lowest pan of the sign mil shall have at
least 5 feet ( 152 4 mm) elc-.iranee between the vertical supchirts

2006 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE



SECTION H112

PROJECTING SIGNS

H 112.1 General. Projci;!!!!^ signs shall be constructed entirely
of metal or other noncombustiblc material and securely
attached to a building or structure by metal supports such as
bolls, anchors, support.s, chains, guys or steel rods. Staples t>r
nails shall not be used seeure any projecting sign to any
building or structure. The dead load of projecting signs not
parallel to the building or .structure and the load due to wind
pressure shall be supported with chains, guys or steel rods
having net cross-scctional dimension of not less than 3'8 inch
('^5 mm) diameter. Such supports shall be erected or
maintained at an angle of at least 45 percent (0 .78 rad) with
the horizontal to resist the dead loacl and at angle of 45
percent {0. 78 rad) or moa* with the face of the sig n to rcsi,st
the specified wind pressure. If such projecting sign exceeds 30
square feet (2.8 m-) in one facial area, there shall be provided at
least two such sup- ports on each side not more than 8 feel
(24.'^8 mm) apart to resist the wind pressure.

HI 12.2 Attachment of supports. Supports shall be secured
to a bolt or expansion screw that will develop the strength of
the supporting chains, guys or steel rods, with a minimum 5'
X^inch (15.9 mBi)boit or lag screw, by an esp.insion .shield. Turn
buckles s hall be placed in chains, guys or steel rods supporting
projecting signs.

H1123 Wall mountiDg details. Chains, cables, guys or steel
rods used to support the liveor dead load ot'projccting signs are
permitted to be fastened to solid masonry walls with expansion
bolts or by machine screws in iron supports, but such supports
shall not be attached to an unbraced parapet wall. Where the
^uppo^ts must be fastened to walls made of wood, the
supporting anchor bolts must go through the wail and be plated
or fastened on the inside In a secure manner.

H112.4 Height Limitation. A projecting sign shall not be
erected on the wall of any building so as to project above the
r(X)f or cornice wall or above the roof level where there is no

cornice wall: except that a sign erected at a right angle to the
building, the horizontal width of which sign is perpendicular to
such a wall and docs not exceed 18 inches (457 mm), is permit
ted to be erected to a height not exceeding 2 feet (610 mm )
above the roof or cornice wall or above the roof level where

there is no cornice wall. A sign attached to a comer of a
building

601



APPENDIX H

iind paralk-l to llic vertical line or such comer .-hall he deemed
to be creeled nt a right angle to the building wall.

HI12.5 Additional loads. I'rojecling sign -iiuiriuivs wliieh will
be used to support an individual on a ladder or other servicing
device, whether or not specifically designed for the servicing
device shall be capable of supporting the anticipated
additional load, but not le.ss than a 100-pound (445 N)
coiiecniratcd hori'/ontal load andu .U)i)-pii und( 1 334 N)
conceniniled vctlieal load applied at the point of assumed or
most eeecntrie kiatling. The building component to wbicli the
projecting sign is attached shall also be designed to support the
additional loads.

TABLE 4-B

THICKNESS OF PROJECTION SIGN

PROJECTION

(fool)

5

4  _

3

For SI; I foot .'(M S mm

MAXIMUM THICKNESS
(feel)

3_

-hi

4

SECTION H443-
MARQUEE SIGNS

etwpt »Us-lI44kv4-ttnd HI-OTtI-.

AtttttflrnHMit. MHfijuoe sitftts^hHll—be ultuoliwI-K*
af>f»rt»vtfd-}HHri|Ut'es that Hftf-i.H»i)»(rueltfd in
SwtH»n-J|(W».

4IH4i3-tJlm«fiisM»n!h-Mar<iuee signs5~H4w(hifr--o»-the-froiit-«f
sider^hHtf-not-pHijtMi btisond tlie-{)eHnf«teF"i«l4lH;HHHri|uee;

IU4-)i4-4Wght-limitfttieHr-Mttftt«iits-sitiH>-sltHti—HtH-esteHd
imxvthaii ft feet mm)-Hbove. niir-l-4^«44,.*05
suJ»4»Hrttuee. hut under- H(» eireum^unetw shaH-the sign-m
sigrw4Hiveu-vt?fHeHl-4imensMm-grenHM4hHnX-<"eet{34.^tHni4;

SECTION H115

REFERENCED STANDARDS

ASTM D635-0.^Test Method ior
Raie of Burning and/or
li.xtcnt aiui Time of Burning
t)f Self-Supporling
Plastics in a Horizontal Position

icc nc-ob ICC Electrical Code

NFPA 701-99 Mcthod-ofl'ireTcst for

Flame Pn>pagation tTIesis
and Films

H 107-1.1

H 1061.

H 106.2

H 106.1.1

SECTION H114

PORTABLE SIGNS

H114.1 General. Portable signs shall confonn to requirement.-
for ground, rtxjf. projceiing. fiat and leinporaiy signs where
such signs are u-ed in a similar capaeitv. 'Die requirements tif
this section -hall not be construed to require portable signs to
have eunncclions to surfaces. tie-dov\ns or foundations where

provi.-ions arc made by temporary means or configuration of
the -truciurv to provide stability for the c.xpectcd duration of
the in-tallation.

TABLE 4-A

SIZE. THICKNESS AND TYPE OF GLASS PANEl^JN SIGNS

j  MAXIMUM SIZE OF
I  . EXPOSED PANEI- -
I  I

! Any dimension | Area
(Inches) (square Inches]

MINIMUM

THICKNESS
OF GLASS

(Inches) TYPE OF GLASS

•0

45

144

> 144

For SI I inch

SCO

700

3.600

> .T(HtO

Z6-:mm I square inch

I  It

; /ri

\i

Plain, plate or wired

Plain, plate or wired

Plain, plate or wired

Wired gla-s

645 16 mm'

602 2006 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE



An ordinance adopting and amending APPENDIX H (Signs) of the International Building

Code/2006.

Section I The publication known as the International Building Code/20Q6 Appendix H, as

published and by the international Code Council, Inc. and amended is hereby adopted for the control,

installation, and placement of signs herein provided; and each and all of the regulations, provisions,

penalties, conditions, amendments, and terms of said Appendix H are hereby referred to, adopted, and

made part hereof as fully set out in ordinance, with additions, insertions, deletions, and changes,

prescribed in Section ill of this ordinance.

Section II That the International Building Code/2000 Appendix H and all other ordinances or

parts of ordinances In conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

Section III

Section H101.2 DELETE: 1. Painted nonllluminated signs.

Section H104 DELETE: Identification (complete section)

Section H107.1.3 DELETE: Area Limitations (complete Section)

Section H110.4 DELETE: Height of open signs (complete section)

Section H110.5 DELETE: Height of closed signs (complete section)

Section H113 DELETE: Marquee signs (complete section)

Section H106.1 DELETE: ICCand INSERT: NEC

Section H106.2 DELETE: ICCand INSERT: NEC

Section H107.1.2 DELETE: 200 square feet INSERT: 120 square feet

Section H109.1 DELETE: greater than 100 feet (30,480 mm) INSERT: 45 feet

Section H110.3 DELETE: solid INSERT: Roof

Section H110.3 DELETE: having a solid surface

Section H109 INSERT: H109.4 Ground signs shall be permitted only when they advertise

products or services sold on the premises on which said sign is located; when they advertise
products or services sold by the owner of the ground sign; or when they display directions or

advertise information about public places; historic homes; historic sites; historic districts;

historic museums; municipal buildings; and hospitals, etc.

H109.S Ground signs with two (2) faces or less shall not have more than 120 square feet per

face, except those located along four lane divided, limited access highways. Ground signs

located along said highways shall not have more than 200 square feet per face.



H109.6 Ground signs with multiple faces constructed on either side or on the same side of

uprights or supports shall not have more than 120 square feet per side.

H109.7 Ground signs having three (3) or four (4) faces attached to the same upright or supports

at the same elevation shall not have more than 50 square feet per face. Messages board areas

which are 60 square feet or less that are located on the same uprights or supports of any ground

sign, shall not be considered to be part of the sign face. Message board areas of more than 60

square feet located on the same uprights or supports shall not be allowed.

H109.8 No more than one (1) ground sign shall be allowed for commercial or non-commercial

premises on which said signs are located, unless said premises lie adjacent to more than one city
street, county highway, state highway, or federal highway. No more than one (1) additional
ground sign shall be allowed in such cases.



COUNCIL BILL NO. 20-09 ORDINANCE NO.

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract between the City of Carthage, Missouri
and G&G Construction Co. Inc., of Carthage, Missouri for the River Street Widening and Storm
water Improvements project in an amount not to exceed $241,016.14.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, JASPER

COUNTY, MISSOURI as follows:

SECTION I: The Mayor of the City of Carthage is hereby authorized to execute a Contract
between the City of Carthage, Missouri and G&G Construction Co. Inc., of Carthage, Missouri for

the River Street Widening and Storm water Improvements project in an amount not to exceed
$241,016.14, pursuant to bid specifications and recommendation, which Contract is attached
hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full.

SECTION II: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and

approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF September 2020.

Dan Rife, Mayor

ATTEST:

Trad Cox, City Clerk

Sponsored by: Public Works Committee



AGREEMENT FORM 00500

THIS AGREEMENT, made this day of , 2020, by and between Citvof Carthaae.
Carthage. Missouri, hereinafter called "OWNER" and G & G Construction Co.. Inc. doing business as (an
individual), or (a partnorchip,) or (a corporation) hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR".

WITNESSETH: That for and In consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned:

1. The CONTRACTOR will commence and complete the construction of River Street Widening and
Stormwater. Carthage. Missouri.

2. The CONTRACTOR will furnish all of the materials, supplies, tools, equipment, labor and other
services necessary for the construction and completion of the PROJECT described herein.

3. The CONTRACTOR will commence the work required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS on the date
stipulated in the NOTICE TO PROCEED and will complete the same within ninety (90) calendar davs unless
the period for completion is extended othenwise by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

4. The CONTRACTOR understands that the specifications governing the work contemplated are attached
to this proposal.

5. The CONTRACTOR agrees to pay, without condition or recourse, as liquidated damages to the sum of
Five Hundred and 00/100 dollars ($500.00) for each consecutive calendar day after the stated DATE OF
COMPLETION or extension thereto that the CONTRACTOR shall be in default as provided in SECTION
15 OF THE General Conditions. CONTRACTOR further agrees to reimburse the subcontractors, suppliers,
engineers, and other contractors of the OWNER for costs incurred and/or damages suffered by reason or
reasons attributable to the CONTRACTOR'S failure to complete the CONTRACT by the completion date,
or extensions thereof, as provided by section 15 of the General Conditions. Said liquidated damages and
payments shall be withheld from the payments due the contractor. The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform
all of the WORK described in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and comply with the terms therein for the
sum of Two Hundred Fortv-One Thousand Sixteen and 14/100 Dollars /$241.016.14).

6. The term "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS" means and includes the following:
(A) Invitation to Bid
(B) Instructions to Bidders
(C) Bid
(D) Bid Bond
(E) Agreement Form
(F) Notice of Award
(G) Notice to Proceed
(H) Performance Bond
(I) Payment bond
(J) General Conditions of Contract
(K) SupplementaryConditions
(L) Specifications prepared by Anderson Engineering. Inc. and dated February. 2020.
(M) Drawings prepared bv Anderson Engineering. Inc. and dated February. 2020.
(N) Addenda

No. J dated February 12 20 20

No. _2 dated February 14 20 20

No. _3 dated February 24 20 20

No. dated 20

No. dated 20

00500-1



7. The OWNER will pay to the CONTRACTOR in the manner and at such times as set forth in the General
Conditions such amounts as required by the Contract Documents.

8. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their duly
authorized officials, this Agreement in three (3) copies each of which shall be deemed an original on the
date first above written.

OWNER:

City of Carthage

(SEAL). By

Attest

Name

Name

Traci Cox Title

Dan Rife

{Please Type or Print)

Mavor

Title Citv Clerk

CONTRACTOR:

(SEAL). By

Attest

Name

Name

Title

Curtis Garner

(Please Type or Print)

President

00500-2



NOTICE OF AWARD 00501

TO: G & G Construction Co.. Inc.

P.O. Box 863

Carthage, Missouri 64836

PROJECT Description: River Street Widening & Stormwater. Carthage. Missouri.

The OWNER has considered the BID submitted by you for the above described WORK in response
to its Invitation to Bid dated Februarv 5.2020 and Instructions to Bidders.

You are hereby notified that you BID has been accepted in the amount of Two Hundred Fortv-One
Thousand Sixteen and 14/100 Dollars ($241.016.14).

You are required by the Instructions to Bidders to execute the Agreement and furnish the required
CONTRACTORS PERFORMANCE BOND, PAYMENT BOND and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE
within fourteen (14) consecutive calendar days from the date of this Notice to you.

If you fail to execute said Agreement and to furnish said BONDS and INSURANCE
CERTIFICATES within fourteen (14) consecutive calendar days from the date of this Notice, said OWNER
will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the OWNER'S acceptance of your BID as
abandoned and as a forfeiture of your BID BOND. The OWNER will be entitled to such other rights as may
be granted by law.

You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this NOTICE OF AWARD to the OWNER.

Dated this day of , 20 .

City of Carthage

By:

Title: Mavor

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE

Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged by

this the day of 20 .

By

Title

501-1



NOTICE TO PROCEED 00502

TO: G & G Construction Co.. Inc.

P.O. Box 863

Carthage. Missouri 64836

DATE:

PROJECT: River Street Widening and Stormwater

You are hereby notified to commence WORK in accordance with the Agreement dated ,

2020, on or before , 2020, and you are to complete the WORK within ninety (90)

calendar days thereafter. The date of completion of all WORK is therefore , 2020.

City of Carthage

By:

Title: Mavor

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE

Receipt of the above NOTICE TO PROCEED

is hereby acknowledged by

this the day of , 20.

By

1-1



COUNCIL BILL NO. 20-10 ORDINANCE NO.

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract between the City of Carthage, Missouri
and Sprouls Construction, Inc., of Lamar, Missouri for Storm water Improvement projects in an
amount not to exceed $207,240.00.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, JASPER

COUNTY, MISSOURI as follows:

SECTION I: The Mayor of the City of Carthage is hereby authorized to execute a Contract
between the City of Carthage, Missouri and Sprouls Construction, Inc., of Lamar, Missouri for

Storm water Improvement projects in an amount not to exceed $207,240.00, pursuant to bid
specifications and recommendation, which Contract is attached hereto and incorporated herein as

if set out in full.

SECTION II: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and
approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF March 2020.

Dan Rife, Mayor

ATTEST:

Trad Cox, City Clerk

Sponsored by: Public Works Committee



AGREEMENT FORM 00500

THIS AGREEMENT, made this day of , 2020. by and between City of Carthage.
Carthage. Missouri, hereinafter called "OWNER" and Sprouls Construction. Inc. doing business as (an
individuol), or (a portnorship,) or (a corporation) hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR".

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned:

1. The CONTRACTOR will commence and complete the construction of 1) College Avenue Curb and
Stormwater: 2) Highland Avenue to St. Louis Avenue Drainage Improvements: 3) Airport Drive to Gene

Tavlor Drive Storm Sewer Improvements: and 4) 4'^ and Maple Streets Storm Sewer Improvements.

Carthage. Missouri.

2. The CONTRACTOR will furnish all of the materials, supplies, tools, equipment, labor and other
services necessary for the construction and completion of the PROJECT described herein.

3. The CONTRACTOR will commence the work required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS on the date
stipulated in the NOTICE TO PROCEED and will complete the same within sixtv (60) calendar davs unless
the period for completion is extended otherwise by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

4. The CONTRACTOR understands that the specifications governing the work contemplated are attached
to this proposal.

5. The CONTRACTOR agrees to pay, without condition or recourse, as liquidated damages to the sum of
Five Hundred and 00/100 dollars ($500.00) for each consecutive calendar day after the stated DATE OF
COMPLETION or extension thereto that the CONTRACTOR shall be in default as provided in SECTION
15 OF THE General Conditions. CONTRACTOR further agrees to reimburse the subcontractors, suppliers,
engineers, and other contractors of the OWNER for costs incurred and/or damages suffered by reason or
reasons attributable to the CONTRACTOR'S failure to complete the CONTRACT by the completion date,
or extensions thereof, as provided by section 15 of the General Conditions. Said liquidated damages and
payments shall be withheld from the payments due the contractor. The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform
all of the WORK described in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and comply with the terms therein for the
sum of Two Hundred Seven Thousand Two Hundred Fortvand 00/100 Dollars ($207.240.00).

6. The term "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS" means and includes the following:
(A) Invitation to Bid
(B) Instructions to Bidders
(C) Bid
(D) Bid Bond
(E) Agreement Form
(F) Notice of Award
(G) Notice to Proceed
(H) Performance Bond
(I) Payment bond
(J) General Conditions of Contract
(K) Supplementary Conditions
(L) Specifications prepared by Anderson Engineering. Inc. and dated February. 2020.
(M) Drawings prepared bv Anderson Engineering. Inc. and dated February. 2020.
(N) Addenda

No. J dated February 12 20 20

No. _2 dated February 18 20 20

No. J dated February 24 20 20

No. .4 dated February 25 20 20

No. dated 20

00500-1



7. The OWNER will pay to the CONTRACTOR in the manner and at such times as set forth In the General
Conditions such amounts as required by the Contract Documents.

8. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their duly
authorized officials, this Agreement in three (3) copies each of which shall be deemed an original on the
date first above written.

OWNER:

City of Carthage

(SEAL). By

Attest

Name

Name

Trad Cox Title

Dan Rife

(Please Type or Print)

Mavor

Title City Clerk

CONTRACTOR:

(SEAL). By

Attest

Name

Name

Title

Dwioht Sorouls

(Please Type or Print)

President

00500-2



NOTICE OF AWARD 0Q501

TO; Sorouls Construction. Inc.

397 W. Hwy DP

Lamar, Missouri 64759

PROJECT Description: College Avenue Curb and Stormater. Highland Avenue to St. Louis Avenue Drainace
Improvements. Airoort Drive to Gene Tavior Drive Storm Sewer Improvements and 4'^ and Maole Streets

Storm Sewer Improvements. Carthage. Missouri.

The OWNER has considered the BID submitted by you for the above described WORK in response
to its Invitation to Bid dated Februarv 5. 2020 and Instructions to Bidders.

You are hereby notified that you BID has been accepted in the amount of Two Hundred Seven
Thousand Two Hundred Fortvand 00/100 Dollars fS207.240.00).

You are required by the Instructions to Bidders to execute the Agreement and furnish the required
CONTRACTORS PERFORMANCE BOND. PAYMENT BOND and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE
within fourteen (14) consecutive calendar days from the date of this Notice to you.

If you fail to execute said Agreement and to furnish said BONDS and INSURANCE
CERTIFICATES within fourteen (14) consecutive calendar days from the date of this Notice, said OWNER
will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the OWNER'S acceptance of your BID as
abandoned and as a forfeiture of your BID BOND. The OWNER will be entitled to such other rights as may
be granted by law.

You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this NOTICE OF AWARD to theOWNER.

Dated this day of , 20 .

City of Carthage

By:

Title: Mavor

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE

Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged by

this the day of 20 .

By

Title

501-1



NOTICE TO PROCEED 00502

TO: Sprouis Construction. Inc.

397 W. Hwv. DP

Lamar. Missouri 64759

DATE:

PROJECT: College Avenue Curb and Stormwater. Hiahland Avenue to St. Louis Avenue Drainage

Improvements. Airport Drive to Gene Tavlor Drive Storm Sewer Improvements and 4"^ and Maole Streets

Storm Sewer Improvements. Carthage. Missouri

You are hereby notified to commence WORK In accordance with the Agreement dated.

2020, on or before , 2020, and you are to complete the WORK within sixtv ^60)

calendar days thereafter. The date of completion of all WORK is therefore , 2020.

City of Carthage

By:

Title: Mavor

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE

Receipt of the above NOTICE TO PROCEED

is hereby acknowledged by

this the day of , 20.

By

1-1



COUNCIL BILL NO. 20-11 ORDINANCE NO.

An Ordinance vacating a portion of an alley running North (from approximately 286 feet to 460

feet) off Centennial Street between Grand Avenue and Clinton Street, between 1429 S Clinton and

1500 Grand Avenue in Carthage Miscellaneous Addition, in the City of Carthage, Missouri.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, JASPER

COUNTY, MISSOURI as foUows:

SECTION I: That the a portion of an alley running North (from approximately 286 feet to 460

feet) off Centennial Street between Grand Avenue and Clinton Street, (that portion specifically

between 1429 S Clinton and 1500 Grand Avenue) in Carthage Miscellaneous Addition, in the City
of Carthage, Missouri is hereby vacated. The City is to retain a utility easement on and through
the vacated alleyway in the same dimensions and size as the current alley.

SECTION II: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and

approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF , 2020.

Dan Rife, Mayor

ATTEST:

Tract Cox, City Clerk

Sponsored by: Public Works Committee



i
f

i 
-

J^
'-

r 
L
:
^

I
 -

A<

.■
£M

. 
f 

-•■*
liS

r-
v 

1 
. p--

^-
flfe

. 
.,' 

- 
•' 

„. 
■

W
.- 

" 
' 

.-T
i.W

:y

c
L

iy
ro

s
s
r



MA YOR 'S

APPOINTMENTS



RE SOL UTIONS



RESOLUTION NO. 1896

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE FORMAL ACCEPTANCE OF A DONATION BY

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI PURSUANT TO CITY
POLICY.

WHEREAS, periodically, private individuals and agencies would like to make donations and grants
to the City of Carthage for general or specific purposes; and

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a policy to formalize the conditions and procedures to be followed
by the City in accepting said donations and grants, and to assist the City Council in evaluating the
impact of proposed donations and grants on the resources of the City of Carthage; and

WHEREAS, This policy also establishes guidelines that ensure donations occur at arm's length from
any City decision-making process, and provide criteria and process for the acceptance of donations;
and

WHEREAS, The City Administrator has prepared and submitted a report evaluating the impact of the
proposed donations or grants on the resources of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

CARTHAGE, JASPER COUNTY, MISSOURI, THE MAYOR CONCURRING HEREIN, AS

FOLLOWS:

That the City accepts a Grant fi"om the Jasper County Law Enforcement Sales Tax Grant

Board (LEST) for the Police Department in the amount of $23,625 for: ODET fees, (2) pole

cameras and (12) portable radios.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF , 2020.

Dan Rife, Mayor

ATTEST:

Traci Cox, City Clerk
Sponsored by: Public Safety Committee



CITY ADMINISTRATOR DONATION REPORT:

The City Administrator shall prepare a report evaluating the impact of all proposed donations or
grants on the resources of the City. This report must include both the immediate costs of placing
said donation into service or program into action and the costs required to maintain or continue the
program in future budget years. Such costs may include analysis of annual personnel, repair and
maintenance and equipment expenditures and any future capital improvements required by the
donation. The report must be submitted to Council at the same time acceptance of the donation or
grant is to be considered. If additional operating costs are associated with the acceptance of the
donation, the Council shall identify the source of revenues to defray the additional costs at the time
of acceptance.

There will be on-going costs associated with the operations of the equipment which will be

handled through the Police Department's operating budget.



MINUTES

STANDING

COMMITTEES



COMMITTEE ON INSURANCE/AUDIT AND CLAIMS

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 2020

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: Ceri Otero, David Armstrong. Kirby Newport and Ed
Barlow.

OTHER COUNCIL MEMBERS: None.

OTHERS PRESENT: City Administrator Tom Short and City Clerk Trad Cox

Chair Ceri Otero called the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M.

OLD BUSINESS:

Approval of minutes from previous meeting: On a motion by Mr. Armstrong, the
minutes of the February 11, 2020 meeting were approved 4-0.

Review and approval of the Claims Report: The Committee discussed Items regarding
the Claims Report. Mr. Armstrong moved to approve the claims. Motion carried 4-0.

NEW BUSINESS:

1. Staff Reports: Ms. Cox reported on a Wellness Training Program she attended
along with Michael Miller. Mr. Short reported worker's compensation renewal rates
had been received and are 1% higher than the previous year. Mr. Short has been
speaking with Beimdiek Insurance Agency regarding the future of health insurance
rates, and a 10% increase in health insurance costs will be incorporated into the
2021 FY Budget.

2. Committee Member Remarks: Committee members discussed the need for Niki

Cloud, CVB Director, to come to the next CIAC meeting to discuss the CVB
plan/vision going forward, and address questions regarding financials.

ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Newport made a motion to adjourn at 5:20 PM. Motion carried 4-0.

Traci Cox

City Clerk



Public Safety Committee - Minutes

Meeting Date: February 24,2020 Meeting Location: City Hall

Call to Order: Chairman Harrison Time Called to Order: 5:30pm

Attendance:

Chairman Harrison, Councilman Collier, Councilman Newport, Councilman Snow, Chief Williams, Chief Dagnan, Morgan Housh

OLD BUSINESS

Councilman Collier made the motion to accept the minutes from the previous meeting as written. Motion passed.

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

1. Meagan Milliken from Carthage Water & Electric was not present to discuss the Tower 2 Tower 5K & Fun

Run. CW&E will be hosting the run in honor of Drinking Water Week. This event will take place on
Saturday May 9'^ at 8:00am. This is the third year and will be ran the same as last year. They are

requesting the help of Carthage Police Department with street crossings at Main Street and Fairview and

also River Street and Fairview. Councilman Newport made a motion to send to the acceptance of the

Tower 2 Tower 5K & Fun Run council contingent upon getting adequate details for the motion, Motion

passed.

2. Abi Almandinger was not present. This will be added to the March agenda.

NEW BUSINESS

1. Staff reports

a. Fire

i. E621 (Engine at Station 2) has had new LED lighting put on it and is adding more

emergency details to the back.

ii. CFD has had some interviews and looking at new hires

iii. CFD has had a few tragic accidents that have been very difficult for the staff

iv. The CFD is working with a company HGAC with purchasing larger items

V. The CFD will be tearing down the training house, west of Station 1, before long

b. Police

i. The CPD is finishing up their End of Year report

ADJOURNMENT - Councilman Newport made a motion to adjourn. Motion passed.

Next Meeting Date: March 23, 2020

Next Meeting Location: Carthage City Hall - Upstairs Conference Room

Persons with disahilities who need special assistance — please contact the
Fire Department at 417-237-7100, or the Police Department at 417-237-7200

at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.



COMMITTEE ON INSURANCE/AUDIT AND CLAIMS

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 2020
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: Ceri Otero, David Armstrong. Kirby Newport and Ed
Barlow.

OTHER COUNCIL MEMBERS: None.

OTHERS PRESENT: City Administrator Tom Short and City Clerk Traci Cox

Chair Ceri Otero called the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M.

OLD BUSINESS:

Approval of minutes from previous meeting: On a motion by Mr. Armstrong, the
minutes of the February 11, 2020 meeting were approved 4-0.

Review and approval of the Claims Report: The Committee discussed items regarding
the Claims Report. Mr. Armstrong moved to approve the claims. Motion carried 4-0.

NEW BUSINESS:

1. Staff Reports: Ms. Cox reported on a Wellness Training Program she attended
along with Michael Miller. Mr. Short reported worker's compensation renewal rates
had been received and are 1% higher than the previous year. Mr. Short has been
speaking with Beimdiek Insurance Agency regarding the future of health insurance
rates, and a 10% increase in health insurance costs will be incorporated into the
2021 FY Budget.

2. Committee Member Remarks: Committee members discussed the need for Niki

Cloud, CVB Director, to come to the next CIAC meeting to discuss the GVB
plan/vision going forward, and address questions regarding financials.

ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Newport made a motion to adjourn at 5:20 PM. Motion carried 4-0.

Traci Cox

City Clerk



f/VT'i

PUBLIC WOILKS COMMITTEE

Public Works Department 623 E T''' Carthage MO 64836
Tele: (417) 237-7010 Fax: (417) 237-7011

"America's Maple LeafCity "

03-03-20 PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

Committee Members present: Mike Daugherty, Ceri Otero, David Armstrong, Ray West

Staff Members present: Tom Short, City Administrator, Zeb Carney, Director, and Julie Tilley,
Public Works Dept

Citizens: John Patrick, Ed Barlow, Michael Banes, Seth Thompson, Abi Almandinger, Craig
Diggs

The Public Works Committee meeting was called to order at 5:36 p.m. by Chairman Mike
Daugherty.

A motion was made by Ceri Otero to accept the minutes from the February 4, 2020 Committee
meeting. All ayes, motion passed.

Citizen Participation: None.

Old Business: None.

New Business:

Consider and discuss alley vacation between 1429 S Clinton and 1500 S Grand. Steve Beimdiek
and Treva Parks have requested vacation of alley. Currently there are utilities in place and
easements will remain in effect. After discussion, Ceri Otero made a motion to forward to
Council for approval. All ayes, motion carried.

Consider and discuss adopting amendments and changes to the 2006 IBC Appendix H. Zeb
presented the document with the proposed edits and updates to reflect what the department is
currently using for signage guidelines. After discussion, David Armstrong made a motion to
forward to Council for approval. All ayes, motion carried.

Consider and discuss contract between City and CDL Electric for lighting improvements and
upgrades at City Hall. Bids were opened on February 26^ for this project. The budgeted amount
listed was at $25,000. CDL Electric submitted the low bid of $15,308 and no cents. After
discussion, David Armstrong made a motion to approve. All ayes, motion carried.

Consider and discuss a contract between City and G&G Construction for road widening and
stormwater improvements along west side of River between George E Phelps Blvd. and Fir
Road. Bids were opened on February 26''^ for this project. The engineer's estimate listed was at
$283,000. City budgeted amount for this project was $418,548. Engineer's and city staff
recommendation is to accept the low bid of $241,016.14 submitted by G&G Construction. After



discussion, Ceri Otero made a motion to approve the bid submitted by G&G Construction. All
ayes, motion carried.

Consider and discuss a contract between City and Sprouls Construction on various stormwater
improvements - College Avenue curb and stormwater, Highland Avenue to St. Louis drainage
improvements, and Airport Drive to Gene Taylor Drive storm sewer improvements. Bids were
opened on February 26'^ for these projects. The engineer's estimate listed was at $217,000.
Sproul's Construction submitted the low bid of $207,240 and no cents. Engineer's and city staff
recommendation is to accept the low bid of $207,240 and no cents submitted by Sproul's
Construction. After discussion, Ceri Otero made a motion to approve the bid submitted by
Sproul's Construction. All ayes, motion carried.

Other Business:

Discuss letter from Anderson Engineering regarding engineering and survey services for Vaughn
Company, Inc for a proposed subdivision located south of Chapel Estates. Zeb gave a brief
timeline of a discussion with a developer about the proposed project. Vaughn has asked
Anderson Engineering to do the civil engineering for the project. The property is currently out
of city limits but is in the process of annexing into the city. Per contract, Anderson is required to
ask permission to do engineering work for project work like this in city limits.

Prior to the meeting, Zeb spoke with Jason at Anderson Engineering and another developer who
is working on a project east of town on Airport Drive has also requested Anderson to do civil
work for their project. After discussion, David Armstrong made a motion to amend the letter for
approval of engineering services requested by Anderson Engineering to include both projects and
forward to Council for approval. All ayes, motion carried.

Citizen Participation: (not on Agenda) - John Patrick of 1002 Durward Hall addressed the
committee to make them aware of a sidewalk project he feels would be appropriate along River
Street north of Airport Drive to Fairview Avenue. Students coming from the areas of Wendy
Lane, Ridgecrest Ave and Lillie Drive are walking in the right of way in the grass toward the
High School, which in his opinion is not an ideal situation. After discussion, the committee
thanked Mr. Patrick for bringing this to their attention and assured Mr. Patrick that they would
continue looking into it.

Abi Almandinger made an inquiry to the availability of a list of condemned properties and if
those properties are being monitored by anyone on a regular basis. After some clarification
between unfit and condemned properties and general follow up practices by public works code
officials, she further clarified her inquiry to include any monitoring by police. Zeb advised that
Chief Dagnan would be the one to answer her questions.

Staff Reports:

Zeb reported on the following:

Zeb gave a summary of the 5 year Capital Projects for Public Works, Street Department and
Public Health that he has been discussing with Tom for the upcoming budget process. Zeb gave
an update on the status of canvassing the Historic District with Bill Smith to evaluate the



structures and boundaries overall. Jason Shelfer contacted Zeb about a house on Maple Street.
The property has been posted since 2013. Zeb and staff re-inspected, utilities were pulled and
the 'Unfit' posting was re-issued. Attempts to meet with the owner to get them some help are
ongoing. Zeb met with Scott Clayton from Habitat for Humanity to discuss several properties
they are trying to get projects moving forward. Zeb met with the County about the Jail project,
he also met with Schreiber's to discuss their upcoming project and finally, Zeb reported on
completing the Census map updates.

Tom reported on the following:

Tom made mention of the impact that our weather has made on current capital projects, delaying
many of those. At the next Council meeting the Vacca project annexation is expected to be
finalized; parameters are being discussed in a memorandum of understanding about
improvements at Ha2el/49. Tom gave an update on the Governor's cost share project. The
Governor's office has sent notification that the city has been awarded funds for the cost share
roundabout project located at Russell Smith Way. The scope of the project has changed and it is
unknown at this time if this will affect the cost share.

Ceri Otero made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:15 p.m. All ayes, motion carried.



MINUTES

SPECIAL

COMMITTEES

AND BOARDS



AGENDAS

STANDING

COMMITTEES



-NOTICE OF MEETING-

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE

March 3,2020

5:30 PM

CITY HALL

326 GRANT STREET

2*^ FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM

-AGENDA-

OLD BUSINESS

1. Consideration and approval of minutes from previous meeting

CITIZENS PARTICIPATION

None

NEW BUSINESS

1. Consider and discuss a council bill for an alley vacation between 1429 S Clinton and
1500 S Grand Avenue, North of Centennial.

2. Consider and discuss adopting amendments and changes to the 2006 International
Building Code Appendix H.

3. Consider and discuss a contract between the City of Carthage and CDL Electric for
lighting improvements and upgrades at City Hall.

4. Consider and discuss a contract between the City of Carthage and G & G
Construction for road widening and stormwater improvements along the west side of
River Street between George E Phelps Boulevard and Fir Road.

5. Consider and discuss a contract between the City of Carthage and Sprouls
Construction on various stormwater improvements - College Avenue curb and
stoimwater. Highland Avenue to St Louis drainage improvements, and Airport Drive
to Gene Taylor Drive storm sewer improvements.

OTHER BUSINESS

1. Discuss letter from Anderson Engineering regarding engineering and surveying
services for Vaughn Company, Inc. for a proposed subdivision located directly south
of Chapel Estates.

STAFF REPORTS - Zeb Carney & Tom Short



ADJOURNMENT

PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE CALL 417-237-

7000 (VOICE) OR 1-800-735-2466 (TDD VIA RELAY MISSOURI) AT LEAST 24
HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING.

POSTED: 2/28/2020

BY: MarciaWeng



--NOTICE OF MEETING-

BUDGET WAYS & MEANS COMMITTEE

MONDAY, MARCH 09,2020

5:30 P.M.

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL

326 GRANT ST., CARTHAGE, MISSOURI

-TENTATIVE AGENDA-

OLD BUSINESS

1. Consideration and approval of minutes from previous meeting.

CITIZENS PARTICIPATION

(Citizens wishing to speak should notify Department Head or Committee Chair in advance)

NEW BUSINESS

1. Consider and discuss Five-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 2021 -2025.
2. Consider and discuss acceptance of 2020 Jasper County Law Enforcement Sales Tax

(LEST) Grant.

3. Consider and discuss a Resolution Amending the 2019 - 2020 Annual Operating and

Capital Budget for the City of Carthage.

4. Staff Reports.

5. Other Business.

ADJOURNMENT

PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE CALL 417-237-

7000 (VOICE) OF 1-800-735-2466 (TDD VIA RELAY MISSOURI) AT LEAST 24 HOURS

PRIOR TO MEETING.

POSTED:

BY:



COMMITTEE ON INSURANCE/AUDIT AND CLAIMS
March 10. 2020

5:00 PM

Carthage City Hall
Council Chambers

*AMENDED AGENDA*

Old Business

1. Consideration and Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting

2. Review and Approval of the Claims Report

Citizens Participation
(Citizens wishing to speak should notify Department Head or Committee Chair in advance)

New Business

1. Consider and discuss CVB reporting and financials.

2. Staff Reports

Adjournment

PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE CALL 417-237-

7000 (VOICE) OR 1-800-735-2466 (TDD VIA RELAY MISSOURI) AT LEAST 24 HOURS
PRIOR TO MEETING.

Posted



AGENDAS

SPECIAL

COMMITTEES

AND BOARDS



MEETING NOTICE

CARTHAGE TREE BOARD

DATE: TUESDAY, March 3, 2020

TIME: 4:00 PM

LOCATION: CARTHAGE PARKS DEPARTMENT

MUNICIPAL PARK

720 ROBERT ELLIS YOUNG DRIVE

CARTHAGE, MO 64836

TENTATIVE AGENDA

1. Finalize plan for Arbor Day April 3, 2020

2. Set next meeting date and adjourn

PERSONS WITH DISABILITIESWHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE CALL 417-237-7000 (VOICE) OR 1-

800-735-2466 (TDD VIA RELAY MISSOURI) AT LEAST 24 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING.

Posted:

By:



John Bartosh

Presiding Commissioner

Tom Flanigan
Eastern District Commissioner

Darieus K. Adams
Western District Commissioner

Jasper Junty (Commission 302 S. Main ST

Carthage, MO 64836

Carthage: 417-358-0421
Joplin: 417-625-4350

Toll Free: 800-404-0421

Fax: 417+358-0483

COMMISSION AGENDA

MARCH 3, 2020

9:00 A.M.

JASPER COUNTY COURTHOUSE ROOM 101

1. CALL TO ORDER

PRAYER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. ROLL CALL

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

4. PRESENTATIONS

5. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

6. ELECTED OFFICIALS/CITIZENS REQUESTS

0 Tony Moehr-Jasper County Health Department-Request for Allocating the Storm Water

Grant Funds.

7. COMMISSIONER'S REPORTS

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

9. NEW BUSINESS

0 Appoint Ted Eastey to the Developmental Disability Resources Board of Jasper

County.

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION FROM AUDIENCE WHEN ADDRESSED YOU WILL BE ALLOWED THREE MINUTES

TO SPEAK.

ELECTED OFFICIALS/CITIZENS WISHING TO BE HEARD UNDER ELECTED OFFICIALS/CITIZENS REQUEST

MUST REQUEST TO SPEAK TO COMMISSION BY 4:00 P.M. ON THE FRIDAY PRIOR TO THE COMMISSION

MEETING ON TUESDAY. CITIZENS SPEAKING TIME WILL BE LIMITED TO FIVE MINUTES.

THE NEWS MEDIA MAY OBTAIN COPIES OF THIS NOTICE BY CONTACTING:

COMMISSION OFFICE, 302 S. MAIN, COURTHOUSE, ROOM 101, CARTHAGE 417-358-0421

NOTICE POSTED FEBRUARY 28, 2020 AT 4:00 P.M. (RSMO 610.020)



CARTHAGE PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Monday, March 9, 2020 5:15 p.m.

CARTHAGE PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD ROOM

612 S. Garrison Ave.

AGENDA

Roll Call of Members

Minutes of the Last Meeting

Financial Report

Director's Progress and Service Report

President's Message

Council Liaison's Report

Committee Reports
Building Committee

Budget Committee

Community Relations

By-Laws

Library Gardens

ADA Compliance

Communications

New Business

Payment of Bills

Adjournment



CORRESPONDENCE



Department Head • Fire District Board Report

2020

January

T^e of Incident District aty Total

Residential Structure Fire 0 0 0

Commercial Structure Fire 0 0 0

Vehicle Fire 3 0 3

Natural Cover Fire 3 6 9

Motor Vehicle Accident S 6 11

Medical Call 20 78 98

Hazardous Materials 0 1 1

Automatic/Mutual Aid 3 0 3

Miscellaneous 10 2S 35

Total Month to Date: 44 116 160

Total Year to Date: 44 116 160

Previous Month to Date: 46 109 155

Previous Year to Date: 46 109 155

March

Type of Incident District Oty Total

Residential Structure Fire 0

Commercial Structure Fire 0

Vehicle Fire 0

Natural Cover Fire 0

Motor Vehicle Accident 0

Medical Call 0

Hazardous Materials 0

Automatic/Mutual Aid 0

Miscellaneous 0

Total Month to Date: 0 0 0

Total Year to Date: 81 206 287

Previous Month to Date: 83 199 282

Previous Year to Date: 212 507 719

May

Type of Incident District aty Total

Residential Structure Fire 0

Commercial Structure Fire 0

Vehicle Fire 0

Natural Cover Fire 0

Motor Vehicle Accident 0

Medical Call 0

Hazardous Materials 0

Automatic/Mutual Aid 0

Miscellaneous 0

Total Month to Date: 0 0 0

Total Year to Date: 81 206 287

Previous Month to Date: 83 199 282

Previous Year to Date: 378 905 1283

February

Type of Incident District aty Total

Residential Structure Fire 2 2 4

Commercial Structure Fire 0 0 0

Vehicle Fire 0 0 0

Natural Cover Fire 1 2 3

Motor Vehicle Accident 11 9 20

Medical Call 13 52 65

Hazardous Materials 0 1 1

Automatic/Mutual Aid 3 0 3

Miscellaneous 7 24 31

Total Month to Date: 37 90 127

Total Year to Date: 81 206 287

Previous Month to Date: 83 199 282

Previous Year to Date: 129 308 437

April

Type of Incident District aty Total

Residential Structure Fire 0

Commercial Structure Fire 0

Vehicle Fire 0

Natural Cover Fire 0

Motor Vehicle Accident 0

Medical Call 0

Hazardous Materials 0

Automatic/Mutual Aid 0

Miscellaneous 0

Total Month to Date: 0 0 0

Total Year to Date: 81 206 287

Previous Month to Date: 83 199 282

Previous Year to Date: 295 706 1001

June

Type of Incident District aty;. Total

Residential Structure Fire 0

Commercial Structure Fire 0

Vehicle Fire 0

Natural Cover Fire 0

Motor Vehicle Accident 0

Medical Call 0

Hazardous Materials 0

Automatic/Mutual Aid 0

Miscellaneous 0

Total Month to Date: 0 0 0

Total Year to Date: 81 206 287

Previous Month to Date: 83 199 282

Previous Year to Date: 461 1104 1565



Department Head • Fire District Board Report

2020

July

Type of Incident District aty Total

Residential Structure Fire 0

Commercial Structure Fire 0

Vehicle Fire 0

Natural Cover Fire 0

Motor Vehicle Accident 0

Medical Call 0

Hazardous Materials 0

Automatic/Mutual Aid 0

Miscellaneous 0

Total Month to Date: 0 0 0

Total Year to Date: 81 206 287

Previous Month to Date: 83 199 282

Previous Year to Date: S44 1303 1847

September

Type of Incident District Qty Total

Residential Structure Fire 0

Commercial Structure Fire 0

Vehicle Fire 0

Natural Cover Fire 0

Motor Vehicle Accident 0

Medical Call 0

Hazardous Materials 0

Automatic/Mutual Aid 0

Miscellaneous 0

Total Month to Date: 0 0 0

Total Yearto Date: 81 206 287

Previous Month to Date: 83 199 282

devious Year to Date: 710 1701 2411

November

Type of Incident District aty Total

Residential Structure Fire 0

Commercial Structure Fire 0

Vehicle Fire 0

Natural Cover Fire 0

Motor Vehicle Accident 0

Medical Call 0

Hazardous Materials 0

Automatic/Mutual Aid 0

Miscellaneous 0

Total Month to Date: 0 0 0

Total Year to Date: 81 206 287

Previous Month to Date: 83 199 282

Previous Year to Date: 876 2099 2975

2020 Year Totals

Type of Incident Dlstrla aty Total

Residential Structure Fire 2 2 4

Commercial Structure Fire 0 0 0

Vehicle Fire 3 0 3

Natural Cover Fire 4 8 12

Motor Vehicle Accident 16 15 31

Medical Call 33 130 163

Hazardous Materials 0 2 2

Automatic/Mutual Aid 6 0 6

Miscellaneous 17 49 66

Total: 81 206 287

August

Typeof Inddent District aty Total

Residential Structure Fire 0

Commercial Structure Fire 0

Vehicle Fire 0

Natural Cover Fire 0

Motor Vehicle Accident 0

Medical Call 0

Hazardous Materials 0

Automatic/Mutual Aid 0

Miscellaneous 0

Total Month to Date: 0 0 0

Total Year to Date: 81 206 287

Previous Month to Date: 83 199 282

Previous Year to Date: 627 1502 2129

October

Type of Incident District aty Total

Residential Structure Fire 0

Commercial Structure Fire 0

Vehicle Fire 0

Natural Cover Fire 0

Motor Vehicle Accident 0

Medical Call 0

Hazardous Materials 0

Automatic/Mutual Aid 0

Miscellaneous 0

Total Month to Date: 0 0 0

Total Yearto Date: 81 206 287

Previous Month to Date: 83 199 282

Previous Year to Date: 793 1900 2693

December

Type of Incident District aty Total

Residential Structure Fire 0

Commercial Structure Fire 0

Vehicle Fire 0

Natural Cover Fire 0

Motor Vehicle Accident 0

Medical Call 0

Hazardous Materials 0

Automatic/Mutual Aid 0

Miscellaneous 0

Total Month to Date: 0 _ 0 0

Total Year to Date: 81 206 287

Previous Month to Date: 83 199 282

Previous Year to Date: 959 2298 3257



"Rosenberg's Rules of Order"

pimple Rules of Parliamentary Procedure for the 21st Century)

Introduction

The rules of procedure at meetings should be simple enou^ for most people to undersund. Unfortunately, that has not
always been the case. Virtually all clubs, associations, boards, councils and bodies follow a set of rules - "Robert's
Rules of Order" - which are embodied in a small, but complex, book. Virtually no one 1 know has actually read this
book cover to cover. Worse yet, the book was written for another time, and for another purpose. If one is chairing or
running a Parliament, then "Robert's Rules of Order" is a dandy and quite useful handbook for procedure in that
complex setting. On the od\er hand, if one is running a meeting of, say, a 5-member body with a few members of the
public in attendance, a simplified version ofthc rules ofparliamentary procedure is in order.

Hence, the birth of "Rosenberg's Rules of Order."

What follows is my version of the rules of parliamentary procedure, based on my 20 years of experience chairing
meetings in state and local government. These rules have bMn simplified for the smaller bodies we chair or in which
we participate, slimmed down for the 21st Century, yet retaining the basic tenets of order to which we have grown
accustomed.

This treatise on modem parliamentary procedure is built on a foundation supported by the following four pillars: (1)
Rules should esiabli^ order. The first purpose of rules of parliamcniary procedure is to establish a fiamcwork for the
orderly conduct of meetings. (2) Rules should be clear. Simple rules lead to wider understanding and participation.
Complex rules create two classes: those who understand and participate; and those who do not fully understand and do
not folly participate. (3) Rules should be user friendly. That is, the rules must be simple enough that the public is
invited into the body and feels that it has participated in the process. (4) Rules should enforce the will of the majority
while protecting the rights of the minority. The ultimate purpose of rules of procedure is to encourage discussion and
to facilitate decision-making by the body. In a democracy, majority rules. The rules must enable the majority to
express itself and fashion a result, while permitting the minority to also express itself but not dominate, and folly
participate in the process.

The Role of (be Chair

While all members of the body should know and understand the rules of parliamentary procedure, it is the Chair of the
body who is charged with applying the rules in the conduct of the meeting. The Chair should be well versed in those
rules. The Chair, for all intents and purposes, makes the final ruling on the rules every time the Chair states an action.
In fact, all decisions by the Chair are final unless overruled by the body itself.

Since the Chair runs the conduct of the meeting, it is usual courtesy for the Chair to play a less active role in the debate
and discussion than other members of the body. This docs not mean that the Chair should not participate in the debate
or discussion. To the contrary, the Chair as a member of the body has the foil right to participate in the debate,
discussion and decision-making of the body. What the Chair should do, however, is strive to be the last to speak at the
discussion and debate stage, and the Chair should not make or second a motion unless the Chair is convinced that no
other member of the body will do so at that point in lime.

The Basic Format for an Agenda Item Discussion

Formal meetings normally have a written, often published agenda. Infoima! meetings may have only an oral or
understood agenda. In either case, the meeting is governed by the agenda and the agenda constitutes the body's agrccd-
upon roadmap for the meeting. And each agenda item can be handled by the Chair in the following basic fonnai;

First the Chair should clearly announce the agenda item number and should clearly state what the agenda item subject
is. The Chair should then announce the format (which follows) that will be followed in considering the agenda item.

Second, following that agenda format the Chair should invite the appropriate person or persons to report on the item,
including any recommendation that they might have. The appropriate person or persons may be the Chair, a member of
the body, a staff person, or a committee chair charged with providing input on the agenda item.

Third, the Chair should ask members of the body if they have any technical questions of clarification. At this point
members of the body may ask clarifying questions to the person or persons who reported on the item, and that person
or persons should be given time to respond.

Fourth, the Chair should invite public comments, or if appropriate at a formal meeting, should open the public
meeting for public input. If numerous members of the public indicate a desire to speak to the subject th« Chair may
limit the lime of public speakers. At the conclusion of the public comments, the Chair should announce that public
input has concluded (or the public hearing as the case may be is closed).

Fifth, the Chair should invite a motion. The Chair should announce the name of tlic member of the body who makes
the motion.



Siith, the Chair should determined if any member of the body wishes to second the motion. The Chair should
announce the name of the member of the body who seconds the motion. (It is normally good practice for a motion to
require a second before proceeding with it, to ensure that it is not just one member of the body who is interested in a
particular approach. However, a second Is not an absolute requirement, and the Chair can proceed with consideration
and vote on a motion even when there is no second. This is a matter left to the discretion ofthe Chair.)

Seventh, if the motion is made and seconded, the Chair should make sure cveiyone understands the motion. This is
done in one of llu-cc ways: (1) The Chair can ask the maker of the motion to repeat it. (2) The Chair can repeat the
motion. (3) The Chair can ask the secretary or the cleric of the body to repeal the motion.

Eighth, the Chair should now invite discussion of the motion by tlie body. If tlierc is no desired discussion, or after the
discussion has ended, the Chair should announce that the body will vote on the motion. If there has been no discussion
or very brief discussion, then the vote on the motion should proceed immediately and there is no need to repeat the
motion. If there has been substantial discussion, then it is normally best to make sure everyone understands the motion
by rqrcating it

Ninth, tlie Chair takes a vote. Simply asking for the "ayes", and then asking for the "nays" normally docs this. If
members of the body do not vote, then they "abstain". Unless the rules of the body provide otherwise (or unless a
super-majority is required as delineated later in these rules) then a simple majority determines whether the motion
passes or is defeated.

Tenth, the Chair should announce the result of the vote and should announce what action (if any) the body has taken.
In announcing the result, the Chair should indicate the names of the members of the body, if any, who voted in the
minori^ on the motion. This announcement might take the following form: " Ilie motion passes by a vote of 3-2, with
Smith and Jones dissenting. Wchavc passed the motion requiring 10 days notice for all future meetings ofthis body."

Motions in General

Motions arc the vehicles for decision-making by a body. It is usually best to have a motion before the body prior to
commencing discussion of an agenda item. This helps tlie body focus.

Motions are made in a simple two-step process. First, the Chair should recognize the member of the body. Second, the
member of the body makes a motion by preceding the member's desired approach with the words; "I move .... "
So, aQpicai motion might be: "I move that we give lO-day'snoticc in the future for all our meetings."

The Chair usually initiates the motion by citJier (1) Inviting llie members of the body to make a motion. "A motion at
this lime would be in order." (2) Suggesting a motion to the members of the body. "A motion would be in order that
wc give lO-da/s notice in the future for all our meetings." (3) Making the motion. As noted, the Chair has every ri^t
as amcmhcr of the body to make a motion, but should normally do so only if the Chair wishes to make a motion on an
item but is convinced that no other member of the body is willing to step forward to do so at a particular time.

The Three Basic Motions

There are three motions that are the most common and recur often at meetings:

The basic motion. The basic motion is the one that puts forward a decision for the body's considertuion. A basic
motion mi^t be: "1 move that wc create a 5-racmbcr committee to plan and put on our annual fundraiser."

The motion to amend. If a member wants to change a basic motion thai is before the body, they would move to
amend it. A motion to amend might be: "1 move that wc amend the motion to have a JO-mcmber committee." A
motion to amend takes die basic motion which is before the body and seeks lo change it in some way.

The substitute motion. If a member wants lo completely do sway with the basic motion that is before the body, and
put a new motion before the body, they would move a substitute motion. A substitute motion might be; "1 move a
substitute motion that we cancel the smnual fundraiser this year."

"Motions to amend" and "substitute motions" are often confused. But they arc quite different, and their effect (if
passed) is quite different. A motion to amend seeks to retain the basic motion on the floor, but modify it in some way.
A substitute motion seeks to throw out the basic motion on the floor, and substitute a new and different motion for it.
The decision as to whether a motion is really a "motion to amend" or a "substitute motion" is left to the chair. So that if
a member makes what that member calls a "motion to amend", but the Chair determines that it is reafly a "substitute
motion", then the Chair's designation governs.

Multiple Motions Before the Body

There can be up to three motions on the floor at the same time. The Chair can reject a fourth mou'on until tlic Chair has
dealt with the three that arc on the floor and has resolved ftiem.

When there are two or three motions on the floor (aficr motions and seconds) at the same time, the vote should proceed
first on the jag motion that is made. So, for example, assuntc the first motion is a basic "motion to have a 5-mcmber
committee to plan and put on our annual fundraiser." During tlie discussion of this motion, a member might make a
second motion to "amend the main motion to have a lO-mcmbcr committee, not a 5-mcmber committee to plan and put



on our annual ftindraiser." And peihaps, during that discussion, a member makes yel a third motion as a "substitute
motion (hat wc not have an annual fundraiser this year." The proper procedure would be as follows:

First, the Chair would deal with the third (the last) motion on the floor, the substitute motion. After discussion and
debate, a vote would be taken first on the third motion, If the substitute motion passed, it would be a substitute for the
basic motion and would eliminate it. The first motion would be moot, as would the second motion (which sou^t to
amend the first motion), and the action on the agenda item would be completed on the passage by the body of the third
motion (the substitute motion). No vote would be taken on the first or second motions. On the other hand, if the
substitute motion (the third motion) failed thm the Chair would proceed to consideration of the second (now, the last)
motion on the floor, the motion to amend.

Second, if the substitute motion failed, the Chair would now deal with the second (now, the last) motion on the floor,
the motion to amend. The discussion and debate would focus strictly on iJic amendment (should the committee by 5
members or 10 members). If the moiioa to amend passed the Chair would now move to consider the main motion (the
first motion) as amended. If the motion to amend failed the Chair would now move to consider the main motion (the
first motion) in its original format, not amended.

Third, the Chair would now deal with the first motion that was placed on the floor. The ori^nal motion would either
be in its original fonnat (5-mcmber conuniuee), or, if amended, would be in its amended format (10-membcr
committee). And the question on the floor for discussion and decision would be whether a committee should plan and
put on the annual fundraiser.

To Debate or Not to Debate

The ba.sic rule of motions is tliat they arc subject to discussion and debate. Accordingly, basic motions, motions to
amend, and substitute motions are all eligible, each in their turn, for fiili discussion before and by the body. The debate
can continue as long as members of the ̂ dy wish to discuss an item, subject to the decision of the Chair that it is time
to move on and take action.

There arc exceptions to the general rule of free and open debate on motions. TTic exceptions all apply when there is a
desire of the body to move on. The following motions are not debatable (that is, when the following motions arc made
and seconded, the Chair must immediately call for a vote of the body without debate on the motion):

A motion to adjourn. This motion, if passed, requires the body to immediately adjourn to its next r^ularly scheduled
meeting. It requires a simple majority vote.

A motion to recess. This motion, if passed, requires the body to immediately take a recess. Normally, the Chair
determines the length of the recess which may be a few minutes or an hour. It requires a simple majority vote.

A motion to fix the time to adiourn. This motion, if passed, requires the body to adjourn the meeting at the specific
time set in the motion. For example, the motion might be: "I move wc adjourn this meeting at midnight." It requires a
simple majority vote.

A motion to fable. This motion, if passed, requires discussion of the agenda item to be halted and the agenda item to
be placed on "hold". The motion can contain a specific time in which the item can come back to the body: "I move wc
table this item until our regular meeting in October." Or the motion can contain no specific time for the return of the
itenu in which case a motion to take the item off the table and bring it back to the body will have to be taken at a future
meeting. A motion to table an item (or to bring it back to the body) requires a simple majority vote.

A motion to limit debate. The most common form of this motion is to say: "I move the previous question" or "I move
the question" or "I call the question." When a member ofthe body makes such a motion, the member is really saying;
"I've had enough debate. Let's get on with the vote". When such a motion is made, the Chair should ask for a second,
stop debate, and vote on the motion to limit debate. The motion to limit debate requires a 2/3 vole of the body. Note:
that a motion to limit debate could Include a time limit. For example; "I move wc limit debate on this agenda item to
15 minutes." Even in this format, the motion to limit debate requires a 2/3 vote of the body. A sinuTar motion is a
motion to object to consideralion of an item. This motion is not debatable, and if pas.sed, precludes the body from evear
considering an item on the agenda. It also requires a 2/3 vote.

Majority and Super-Majority Votes

In a democracy, a simple majority vote detennines a question. A lie vote means the motion fails. So in a 7-membcr
body, a vote of 4-3 passes the motion. A vote of 3-3 with one abstention means the motion fails. If one member is
absent and the vote is 3-3, the motion still fails.

All motions require a simple majority, but there are a few exceptions. The exceptions come up when the body is taking
an action which, dTectivcly, cuts oft" the ability of a minority of the body to lake an action or discuss and item. TTicse
extraordinary motions require a 2/3 majority (a super-majority) to pass:

Motion to limit debate. Whether a member says "I move the previous question" or "I move the question" or'T call the
question" or "I move to limit debate", it all amounts to an aricmpt to cut off the ability of tlic minority to discuss an
item, and it requires a 2/3 vote to pass.



Motion to close nominations. When choosing officers of Ihc body (like the Chair) nominations arc m order cither
from a nominating committee or from the floor of the body. A motion to close nominations effectively cuts off the
right of the minority to nominate officers, and it requires a 2/3 vole to pass.

Motion to ohicct to the consideration of a Question. Normally, such a motion is unnecessary since the objectionable
item can be tabled, or defeated straight up. However, when members of a body do not even want an item on the agenda
to be considered, then such a motion is in order. It is not debatable, and it requires a 2/3 vote to pass.

Motion to suspend the rules. This motion is debatable, but requires a 2/3 vote to pass, if the body has its own rules of
order, conduct or procedure, this motion allows the body to suspend the rules for a particular purpose. For example, the
body (a private club) might have a rule prohibiting the attendance at meetings by non-club members. A motion to
suspend the rules would be in order to allow a non-club member to attend a meeting of the club on a particular dale or
on aparticular agenda item.

The Motion to Reconsider

There is a special and unique motion that requires a bit of explanation all by itself: the motion to reconsider. A tenet of
parliamentary procedure is finality. After vigorous discussion, debate, peihaps disagreement and a vote, then: must be
some closure to tlic issue. And so, aflcr a vote is taken, the mailer is deemed closed, subject only to a rc-opcncr if a
proper motion to reconsider is made.

A motion to reconsider requires a majority vote to pass, but there are two special rules that apply only to the motion to
reconsider. First, is timing. A motion to reconsider mu.st be made at the meeting where the item was first voted upon or
al the very next meeting of the body. A motion to reconsider made at a later time is untimely. (TTie body, however, can
always vole to suspend the rules and by a 2/3 majority, can allow a motion to reconsider to be made at another time.)
Second, a motion to reconsider can only be made by certain members of the body. Accordingly, a motion to reconsider
can only be made by a member who voted in the majority on the original motioa If such a member has a change of
heart, he or she can make tlic motion to reconsider (any other member of the body may second the motion). If a
member who voted in the minoritv seeks to make the motion to reconsider, it must be ruled out oforder. The purpose
of this rule is finaJiiy. If a member of the minority cxmld make a motion to reconsider, then the item could be brought
back to the body again and again. That would defeat the purpose of finality.

If the motion to reconsider passes, then the original matter is back before die body, and a new original motion is then
in order. ITie matter can be discussed and debated as if it were on the floor for the first time.

Courtesy and Decorum

The rules of order are meant to create an atmosphere where the members of the body and the members of the public
can attend to business efficiently, fairly and with full participation. At the same time, it is up to the Chair and the
members of the body to maintain common courtesy and decorum. Unless the setting is very infonriat it is always best
for only one person at a time to have the floor, and it is always best for every speaker to be first recognized by the
Chair before proceeding to speak.

T"hc Chair should always ensure that debate and discussion of an agenda item focuses on the item and the policy in
question, not the personalities of the members of the body. Debate on policy is healthy, debate on personalities is not
TTre Chair has tlic right to cut off discussion that is too personal, is too loud, or is too crude.

Debate and discussion should be focused, but free and open. In the interest of time, the Chair may, however, limit the
time aJloltcd to speakers, including members of the body.

Can a member of the body interrupt the speaker? The general rule is "no." There are, however, cxccpticms. A speaker
may be interrupted for the following reasons:

Priv'tlege. The proper intcmipdon would be: "point of privilege." The Chair would then ask the interrupter to "state
your poinL" Appropriate points of privilege relate to anything that would interfere with the normal comfort of the
meeting. For example, the room may be too hot or too cold, or a blowing fan might interfere with a person's ability to
hear.

Order. The proper interruption would be: "point of order." Again, the Chair would ask the interrupter to "state your
point." Appropriate points of order relate to anything that would not be considcnsl appropriate conduct of the meeting.
For example, if the Chair moved on to a vote on a motion thai permits debate without allowing that discussion or
debate.

Appeal. If the Chair makes a ruling that a member of the body disagrees with, thai member may appeal the ruling of
the chair. If the motion is seconded, mtd after debate, if it passes by a simple majority vote, then the ruling of the Chair
i."? deemed reversed.

Call for orders of the day. This is simply another way of saying, "I^i's return to the agenda," If a member believes
tliut tlie body has drifted from tlie agrecd-upon agenda, such a call may be made. It docs not require a vote, and when
the Chair discovers that the agenda has not been followed, the Chair simply reminds the body to return to the agenda
item properly before them. If the Chair fails to do so, the Chair's determination may be appealed.



I>uring debate and discussion ofa motioa, the maker ofthe motion on the floor, at any time, may
intcmjpt a to withdraw his or her motion from the floor. The motion is inimcdiatciy deemed withdrawn
ajtbo^ the C3iar iray ask the person who seconded the motion if he or she wishes to make the motion, and any other
member may make the motion if properly recognized.

Special Notes Abont Public Input

The rdcs outlined ̂ vc wilJ help make meetings very public-friendly. Bui in addition, and fwnicuJarly for the Chair
n js wise to rcmcinljcr throe special rules that apply to each agenda henu

Rule One: Tell the public what the body will be doing.
Rule Two: Keep the public informed ̂ ^^le the body is doing It.

Rule Three: When the body has acted, tell the public what the body did.


